


Table of Contents
October 5, 2022

Agenda Item AIIL.......ovininiiniii i ceser e e e aeaeees Approval of Agenda

Agenda Item #IV.................Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of September 21, 2022

Agenda Item #V............... Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of September 21, 2022

Agenda Item #VI.coiiiiiiniiiiii i eea e General Manager / Staff Reports



Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #I11



N Nz g et

w Board of Public Utilities

Kansas City, Kansas

BOARD AGENDA

Regular Session
October 5, 2022 — 6:00 P.M.

L. Call to Order

II. Roll Call
____David Haley, At Large, Position 2
___Tom Groneman, District 2
____Robert L. Milan, Sr., District 1
____Jeff Bryant, District 3

Mary L. Gonzales, At Large, Position 1
Rose Mulvany Henry, At Large, Position 3

II1. Approval of Agenda

IV. Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of September 21, 2022
V. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of September 21, 2022
VL Public Comments

VIIL. General Manager / Staff Reports

1. August 2022 Financials
1i. Information Technology Quarterly Report

111. Miscellaneous Comments
VIII. Board Comments
IX. Executive Session

X. Adjourn



Approval of Minutes
Work Session 9-21-22
Agenda Item #IV



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2022

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Work Session on Wednesday, September 21, 2022 at 4:00 P.M. The following Board Members
were present: Mary Gonzales, President; Rose Mulvany Henry, Vice President; Thomas
Groneman, Secretary; Robert L. Milan, Jeff Bryant and David Haley.

Also present: William Johnson, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Deputy Chief
Counsel; Jeremy Ash, Interim Chief Operating Officer; Steve Green, Executive Director Water
Operations; David Mehlhaff, Chief Communications Officer; Patrice Townsend, Director
Utility Services; and Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager.

A tape of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities.

Ms. Gonzales called the meeting to order at 4:00 P.M.

Roll call was taken, all Board Members were present except Mr. Haley, who arrived at
5:00 P.M.

Item #5 —Board Strategic Plan

The Board continued their discussion about their goals for the Board of Directors
portion of the Strategic Plan. Regarding Board evaluation in the Board Accountability section,
it was decided that Ms. Angela Lawson, Deputy Chief Counsel, would handle the
communication in developing the evaluation. There was also discussion about having a formal
communication plan in regards to how the Board communicates with each other in accordance
with the rules set out by the Kansas Attorney General. It was suggested that perhaps a formal
communication plan could go into the Board policies that should also be reviewed. The
formation of a Board Mentorship program for new Board members was also discussed.

Ms. Lawson, would compile the discussion points and send them to the Board members.

Item #6 — Kconomic Development Proposal — Yards II

Ms. Patrice Townsend, Director Utility Services reviewed the revised Economic
Development request from Flaghtery and Collins for the Helms project. After reviewing the
revised request, the Economic Development Committee asked Ms. Townsend to bring it to the
full Board.

Page 1 of 2



WORK SESSION MINUTES — WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2022

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS

CITY OF KANSAS CITY )
Mr. Bryant expressed his thoughts on why he was against granting the request.
Ms. Gonzales asked for clarification on water usage from Kansas City, MO.
Mr. Steve Green, Executive Director Water Operations, said that they were currently working
on an interconnect that would give the project the opportunity to get started and then could be

available in case of an emergency.

Ms. Mulvany Henry asked if their shared cost agreement with the Unified Government (UG)
had been completed.

Ms. Lawson said she would make inquiries.
The Board requested that the Agenda be amended to include this resolution.

Item #7 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the Work Session at 6:00 P.M. by Ms. Mulvany Henry,
seconded by Mr. Haley, and unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 2 of 2





















Reasoning for Request:

The below summarizes the reasoning behind the request for economic development
assistance:

a. F&Coriginally intended water would be available from the currently existing water main
located in the right of way on State Line Road. This water main is located in Kansas City,
Missouri however, F&C has been granted access to this water main for temporary water
to the project.

b. With construction costs continuing to escalate, the project cannot bear the burden of
additional costs. For example, The Yards, located in Kansas City, Missouri has more gross
square footage than what is planned for The Helm. However, with the escalation in
construction costs, The Helm has been bid at approximately $21 million more than The
Yards.

a. F&Cis currently working through all options to reduce costs on the project and
has reduced the above to approximately $14 million over the total cost of The
Yards.

c. The overall 17.37 acres available are not developable without access to utilities. By
providing access to utilities for the overall property, BPU will ensure that future
development continues in this location, expanding the overall rate payer base of BPU
while simultaneously allowing for future residential, office, commercial, and/or retail
users.

Unified Government Commitment:

In addition to the 20-Year TIF, F&C and the Unified Government have been working
closely to create a cohesive Kansas City, Kansas Riverfront. To create the Riverfront,
the Unified Government has asked that F&C alter aspects of the design of The Helm

to further interact with the top of levee.

F&C will be overdesigning certain infrastructure components to accommodate not
only The Helm but also the newly planned KCK Riverfront Park. Currently, F&C and
the Unified Government are negotiating a shared cost agreement for the above
referenced items. The approximate total commitment of the Unified Government is
$247,473.00.

Rents:

Below is a summary of estimated market rate rent for The Helm:
- Studio: $1,100.00
- One bedroom: $1,500.00
- Two Bedroom: 51,800.00

The above rents are all below 90% of the area Median Family Income. These
projected rents also equate to an approximately $1.97 per square foot average. Due
to the location of the project, achievable rents are not on par with those that can be
seen in Downtown Kansas City, Missouri.

For example, the average per square foot rental rate in Downtown Kansas City,
Missouri ranges from $2.13 per square foot to over $3.00 per square foot. These



PROPERTIES

FLAHERTY & COLLINS DEVELOPMENT - CONSTRUCTION - MANAGEMENT

rents at the current time are not achievable within the market area of The Helm and
further identify challenges requiring additional economic development assistance.

Employment:

Property Employment:
- Approximately Seven Full Time Employees
o Approximate Average Annual Salary: $51,400

Construction Employment:

- We have estimated that more than 200 jobs will be created for the
construction of The Helm.

MBE / WBE / LBE
- F&Chas established the following minority, women and local business enterprise goals
for the project:
o MBE:15%
o WBE: 7%
o LBE:18%

E



Approval of Minutes
Regular Session 9-21-22
Agenda Item #V



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2022

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Regular Session on Wednesday, September 21, 2022 at 6:00 P.M. The following Board
Members were present: Mary Gonzales, President; Rose Mulvany Henry, Vice President;
Thomas Groneman, Secretary; Robert L. Milan, Jeff Bryant, and David Haley.

Also present: William Johnson, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Deputy Chief
Counsel; Jeremy Ash, Interim Chief Operating Officer; Johnetta Hinson, Executive Director
Customer Service; Dong Quach, Executive Director Electric Production; Steve Green,
Executive Director Water Operations; Jerin Purtee, Executive Director Electric Supply; Maurice
Moss, Executive Director Corporate Compliance; David Mehlhaff, Chief Communications
Officer; Randy Otting, Director Accounting; Patrice Townsend, Director Utility Services; Steve
Nirschl, Director Water Processing; Clifford Robinett, Acting Director Water Distribution;
Brandon Sisk, Project Engineer II; Phillip Brown, Senior Civil Engineer; and Robert Kamp, IT
Project Manager.

A tape of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Ultilities.

Ms. Gonzales called the Board meeting to order at 6:04 P.M. She welcomed all that were
listening to or viewing the meeting. She stated that the Board felt it was necessary to offer the
use of technology for staff as well as for the general public. During the public comment section,
members of the public who wished to speak to the Board using Zoom needed to use the Raise
Hand feature at the bottom of the application or window to signal that they wish to address the
board during the public comment section. Members of the public connected by phone only,
needed to press *9 to indicate they wished to address the Board in the public comment section.
Staff would assist those attending in person. During the public comment section of the agenda,
community members would be asked to provide their name and address and had five minutes to
speak. As always, the public could also email or call the BPU with any concerns. The agenda
and presentations could be found on the BPU website or if they were using Zoom they would
appear on their screen. Ms. Gonzales introduced herself and the other Board Members along
with the General Manager, and Legal Counsel.

Roll call was taken and all Board Members were present.

Item #3 — Approval of 2" Amended Agenda

A motion was made to approve the 2" Amended Agenda by Mr. Bryant, seconded by
Mr. Milan, and unanimously carried.

Page 1 of 5



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2022

STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS

CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item #4— Approval of Regular Session Minutes of August 17, 2022

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the Regular Session of August 17, 2022,

by Ms. Mulvany Henry, seconded by Mr. Bryant, and unanimously carried.

Item #5 — Public Comments

There were no visitors wishing to speak.

Item #6 — General Manager / Staff Reports

ii.

iil.

Water Operations Quarterly Report: Mr. Steve Green, Executive Director Water
Operations introduced Mr. Marshall Robinett, Acting Director Water Distribution.
During his introduction, he congratulated Mr. Robinett on passing the test and
obtaining his Distribution license.

Mr. Robinett and Mr. Steve Nirschl, Director Water Processing, gave the Board recap
on Water Distribution and Water Production, including capital improvements for 2022.
Mr. Brandon Sisk, Project Engineer II presented to the Board an overview on the
demolition and status of the Argentine Reservoir project. (See attached PowerPoint.)

Mr. Green, Mr. Robinett, Mr. Johnson, responded to questions and comments from the
Board.

KDHE Revolving Loan — Resolution #5276 Mr. Phillip Brown, Senior Civil Engineer,
reviewed Resolution #3276 with the Board. (See attached PowerPoint.)

Mzr. Brown, Mr. Green, and Mr. Randy Otting, Director Accounting, responded to
questions and comments from the Board.

A motion was made to approve Resolution #5276 - Amending the Amount of the
KDHE Revolving Loan by Ms. Mulvany Henry, seconded by Mr. Bryant, and
unanimously carried.

Vote on Yards II EDC 2™ Application — Resolution #5277: Ms. Angela Lawson,
Deputy Chief Counsel, provided the Board with two resolutions regarding the Yards 11

Page 2 of §



REGULAR SESSION ~-WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2022
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

Economic Development request for $248,000; one to approve, the other to deny the
request for funds. (See attached.)

Mr. Bryant commented on the expenditure of the dollars and the lack of return on the
investment for the community.

Ms. Patrice Townsend, Director Utility Services, described the amended request to the
Board.

A motion was made to approve Resolution #5277-Approval for the modified Economic
Development Assistance to the Helms (formerly The Yards II) by Ms. Mulvany Henry,

seconded by Mr. Groneman.

Mr. Haley again addressed the question regarding the return on investment. He asked if
any of the budgeted amount of $500,000 had been expended in 2022.

Ms. Townsend said she would have another request coming to the Economic
Development Committee.

Ms. Lawson clarified that stipulation number two, which was left blank, would not be
applicable and that the resolution would be amended to reflect that.

Roll call was taken.

Mr. Haley — no

Mr. Groneman — yes

Mr. Milan — yes

Mr. Bryant — no

Ms. Gonzales — yes

Ms. Mulvany Henry — yes

The motion carried.

Page 3 of §



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2022

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Miscellaneous Comments: Mr. Johnson updated the Board on the UG Economic
Development Task Force. The interim County Administrator had put out an RFP for a
consultant to look at the UG Economic Development procedures. He said that a date
had not been set for the next UG Efficiency Task Force meeting. He reported that the
search firm selected for the County Administrator search had withdrawn from
consideration. The task force would be meeting the runner-up firm and continue to
move forward.

He reported to the Board on a meeting had with Lieutenant Governor Toland which
included a discussion about the need to be competitive in bringing data centers to our

area.

He spoke to the Board about the Leadership Exchange trip he had made to Detroit, MI
and about the strides they were making to recover from bankruptcy.

He informed the Board that the cameras had been installed. After discussion it was
decided to begin video recording as of October 5™

He said that the Cold Weather Rule and possibly minor revisions to other Customer
Service Policies would be on an Agenda in October for the Board to consider.

Item #7— Board Comments

Ms. Mulvany Henry thanked the group from the Water Department for their
impressive presentations.

Ms. Gonzales also thanked the Water Department for their presentations and
congratulated Mr. Robinett on getting his certification. She also congratulated Mr. Johnson
for being recognized in Ingram’s Magazine. She also spoke about attending a UG meeting
on the charter review.

Mr. Groneman had no comments.
Ms. Haley thanked the Water Department for their helpful report. He also commented

going live with future meetings and about attending the UG Finance Committee meeting and
the questions he raised about the PILOT.

Page 4 of 5



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2022

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Mr. Milan thanked the Water Department for their assessment. He congratulated Mr.
Johnson for his recognition in Ingram’s Magazine.

Mr. Bryant spoke about the discussion the Board had in the Work Session and how he
felt it made them better Board members. He spoke about his appreciation of the Water
Department. He also asked for an update on the lobby. He was also interested to hear about the

UG’s study of the PILOT.

Mr, Haley asked if the misspelling of James Street on the resolution could be fixed
without Board action.

Ms. Lawson said it would be fixed.

Item #8 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn at 7:59 P.M. by Mr. Groneman, seconded by Mr. Milan,
and unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page Sof 5















































































































RESOLUTION NO. 5276

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A FIRST AMENDMENT
TO A LOAN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES OF
THE UNIFIED GOVERNMENT OF WYANDOTTE COUNTY/KANSAS CITY,
KANSAS AND THE STATE OF KANSAS, ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE
KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT, FOR THE
PURPOSE OF OBTAINING A LOAN FROM THE KANSAS PUBLIC WATER
SUPPLY FUND FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING A PUBLIC WATER
SUPPLY PROJECT; ESTABLISHING A DEDICATED SOURCE OF REVENUE
FOR REPAYMENT OF SUCH LOAN; AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING
CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH; AND AUTHORIZING
CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE LOAN
AGREEMENT.

WHEREAS, the Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996 [PL 104-1 82] to the Safe Drinking
Water Act (the “Federal Act™) established the Drinking Water Loan Fund to assist public water supply
systems in financing the costs of infrastructure needed to achieve or maintain compliance with the Federal
Act and to protect the public health, and authorized the Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”) to
administer a revolving loan program operated by the individual states; and

WHEREAS, to fund the state revolving fund program, the EPA will make annual capitalization
grants to the states, on the condition that each state provide a state match for such state’s revolving fund;
and

WHEREAS, by passage of the Kansas Public Water Supply Loan Act, K.S.A. 65-163d et seq., as
amended (the “Loan Act”), the State of Kansas (the “State™) has established the Kansas Public Water
Supply Loan Fund (the “Revolving Fund”) for purposes of the Federal Act; and

WHEREAS, under the Loan Act, the Secretary of the Kansas Department of Health and
Environment (“KDHE”) is given the responsibility for administration and management of the Revolving
Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Kansas Development Finance Authority (the “Authority”) and KDHE have
entered into a Master Indenture (the “Master Indenture™) pursuant to which KDHE agrees to enter into Loan
Agreements with Municipalities for public water supply system projects (the “Projects™) and to pledge the
Loan Repayments (as defined in the Master Indenture) received pursuant to such Loan Agreements to the
Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized under K.S.A. 74-8905(a) and the Loan Act to issue
revenue bonds (the “Bonds™) for the purpose of providing funds to implement the State’s requirements
under the Federal Act and to loan the same, together with available funds from the EPA capitalization
grants, to Municipalities within the State for the payment of Project Costs (as said terms are defined in the
Loan Act) and

WHEREAS, the Board of Public Utilities (the “BPU”) of the Unified Government of Wyandotte
County/Kansas City, Kansas (the “Unified Government”), an administrative agency of the Unified
Government, operates the Unified Government’s public water supply and distribution system (the
“System”); and



WHEREAS, the BPU is a municipality as said term is defined in the Loan Act, and the System is
a Public Water Supply System, as said term is defined in the Loan Act; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the BPU (the “BPU Governing Body™) has heretofore
determined it to be in the best needs of the customers of the System to undertake certain modifications and
improvements to the System, including (i) 7 MG Argentine Reservoir at an estimated cost of $14,500,000
(initially $10,000,000) , (ii) replace aging distribution mains at an estimated cost of $12,000,000 (initially
$9,000,000), (iii) transmission main from 90" and Parallel to 1-435 and France Family Drive at an estimated
cost of $4,000,000 (initially $2,000,000), (iv) electrical improvements at Nearman Water Treatment Plant
and pumping stations at an estimated cost of $2,500,000 (initially $1,500,000) and (v) replace 24-inch main
at 12 Street and Kansas River at an estimated cost of $6,500,000 (initially $2,500,000) (collectively, the
“Projects”), and to pay Loan origination costs; and

WHEREAS, the BPU has, pursuant to the Loan Act and as authorized by Resolution No. 5260,
submitted an Application to KDHE to obtain a loan from the Revolving Fund in an initial aggregate amount
not to exceed $25,000,000.00, subsequently increased to an aggregate amount not to exceed
$39,500,000.00, to finance the costs of the Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. R-29-21 approved April 8, 2021, the Unified Government
authorized the BPU to obtain a Loan in the initial amount of $25,000,000.00; and

WHEREAS, as authorized by Resolution No. 5267 of the BPU Governing Body, the BPU accepted
a loan in the initial amount of $25,000,000.00 and entered into a certain Loan Agreement with an effective date
of August 23, 2021, with the State of Kansas acting by and through the Kansas Department of Health and
Environment (the “Original Loan Agreement”), to finance the costs of the Project as initially estimated; and

WHEREAS, subsequent to the effective date of the Original Loan Agreement, the estimated costs of
the Project increased from $25,000,000.00 to $39,500,000.00, and the BPU applied to KDHE for an increase
in the amount of the loan, to be effected by the hereinafter described First Amendment to Loan Agreement,
amending the Original Loan Agreement to increase the amount of the hereinafter described Loan to
$39,500,000.00; and

WHEREAS, the BPU has taken all steps necessary and complied with all requirements of the Loan
Act and the provisions of K.A.R. 28-15-50 through 28-15-65 (the “Regulations”) applicable thereto necessary
to qualify for the hereinafter described Loan; and

WHEREAS, KDHE has informed the BPU that it has been approved for a loan in an amount of not
to exceed $39,500,000.00 (the “Loan™) in order to finance the Project; and

WHEREAS, the BPU will request the Unified Government to authorize the increase in the amount of
the Loan; and

WHEREAS, the governing body of the BPU hereby finds and determines that it is necessary and
desirable to accept the Loan and to enter into a First Amendment to Loan Agreement to be considered effective
as of August 8, 2022 (the “First Amendment to Loan Agreement” and with the Original Loan Agreement, the
“Loan Agreement”) and certain other documents relating thereto, and to take certain actions required in order
to implement the Loan Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES OF THE UNIFIED GOVERNMENT OF WYANDOTTE
COUNTY/KANSAS CITY, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS:



Section 1. Authorization and Approval of Loan Agreement. The BPU is hereby authorized to
accept the Loan and to enter into a certain First Amendment to Loan Agreement to be considered effective as
of August 8, 2022, with the State of Kansas acting by and through the Kansas Department of Health and
Environment, amending the Original Loan Agreement, to finance the Project Costs (as defined in the Loan
Agreement). The General Manager of the BPU is hereby authorized to enter into the First Amendment to Loan
Agreement in substantially the form presented to the Board of Directors this date, with such changes therein as
shall be approved by the General Manager of the BPU and the BPU’s legal counsel, such General Manager’s
execution of the First Amendment to Loan Agreement being conclusive evidence of their approval thereof.

Section 2. Establishment of Dedicated Source of Revenue for Repayment of Loan. Pursuant to
the Act, the BPU hereby establishes the System Revenues (as defined in the Loan Agreement) as the dedicated
source of revenue for repayment of the Loan. The Loan constitutes Subordinate Debt as defined in the Second
Amended and Restated Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2014 by and between the Unified Government
and Security Bank of Kansas City, as Trustee (as heretofore and hereafter amended and supplemented, the
“Indenture”). In accordance therewith, the BPU shall fix, establish, maintain and collect such rates, fees and
charges for the use and services furnished by or through the System, including all improvements and additions
thereto hereafter constructed or acquired by the BPU, as will provide revenues sufficient to (a) pay the cost of
the operation and maintenance of the System, (b) pay the principal of and interest on the Loan, any Existing
Revenue Obligations and Additional Revenue Obligations (as said terms are defined in the Loan Agreement)
as and when the same become due, and (c) pay all other amounts due at any time under the Loan Agreement.
Such dedicated source of revenue is hereby pledged as security for repayment of the Loan, provided that such
pledge shall be subordinate and junior in all respects to the pledge of the Trust Estate by the Indenture as
security for the Bonds, as such terms are defined in the Indenture.

Section 3. Further Authority. The President, Secretary, General Manager and other officers, agents
and employees of the BPU are hereby further authorized and directed to execute any and all documents and
take such actions as they may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out and perform the purposes of
this Resolution, and to make alterations, changes or additions in the foregoing agreements, statements,
instruments and other documents herein approved, authorized and confirmed which they may approve, and the
execution or taking of such action shall be conclusive evidence of such necessity or advisability.

Section 4. Governing Law. The Resolution and the Loan Agreement shall be governed exclusively
by and construed in accordance with the applicable laws of the State of Kansas.

Section 5. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its
adoption by the Board of Directors of the BPU.

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Board of Public Utilities of the Unified Government of
Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas, this 21st day of September, 2022.

BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

By:

President
ATTEST:

Secretary



CERTIFICATE OF RECORDING OFFICER

The undersigned, duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Public Utilities of the Unified
Government of Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas, does hereby certify:

That the attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted at a legally convened
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Board of Public Utilities of the Unified Government of Wyandotte
County/Kansas City, Kansas held on the 21st day of September, 2022; and, further, that such resolution has
been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in the official BPU records.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, [ have hereunto set my hand this day of September, 2022.

Secretary



APPROVED

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5277

A RESOLUTION APPROVING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ASSISTANCE TO THE HELMS (FORMERLY THE YARDS II).

WHEREAS, the Kansas City Board of Public Utilities an administrative agency of the
Unified Government of Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas ("KCBPU”) has received an
updated request for Economic Development Assistance from Flaherty & Collins for the Helms
(formerly Yards II) at 200 South Janes Street, Kansas City, Kansas 66101; and

WHEREAS, the Board of KCBPU has reviewed said request for Economic
Development assistance and staff recommendations; and

WHEREAS, the Board of KCBPU has determined that this project will have significant
and visible impact along the Kansas River and should reap significant attention for Kansas City,
Kansas and help spur other development and investments in Kansas City, Kansas.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDAINED BY THE
GOVERNING BODY OF THE KCBPU:

The Flaherty & Collins (F&C) shall be awarded $248,025 for the Helms project in the
form of:

1) Water main extension $150,000.60
2) Waive All Connection Fees $ 98,024.40

and with the following stipulations:

1) All requirements of Resolution 5107 shall be met.

2)

ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE KCBPU
THIS 21st DAY OF September, 2022.

Mary Gonzales, Board President



Attest:

Thomas Groneman, Board Secretary

Approved as to form:

KCBPU Legal Counsel



NOT BDOPTED

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5277

A RESOLUTION DENYING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ASSISTANCE TO THE HELMS (FORMERLY THE YARDS IT).

WHEREAS, the Kansas City Board of Public Utilities an administrative agency of the
Unified Government of Wyandotte County/Kansas City, Kansas ("KCBPU”) has received an
updated request for Economic Development Assistance from Flaherty & Collins for the Helms
(formerly Yards II) at 200 South Janes Street, Kansas City, Kansas 66101; and

WHEREAS, the Board of KCBPU has reviewed said request for Economic
Development assistance and staff recommendations; and

WHEREAS, the Board of KCBPU has discretion in deciding which projects to fund and
the amount of funding if any.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDAINED BY THE
GOVERNING BODY OF THE KCBPU:

That no Economic and Development Assistance shall be provided to Flaherty & Collins
(F&C) for the Helms project.

ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE KCBPU
THIS 21st DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2022.

Mary Gonzales, Board President

Attest:

Thomas Groneman, Board Secretary

Approved as to form:

KCBPU Legal Counsel



General Manager /
Staff Reports
Agenda Item #VII



Unaudited|
Far the Reliled| Ending)
Rugust 3, 2022
Prepariedl By Accounting)




KANSAS CITY, KANSAS
BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

]

August 2022
Financial Statements

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Combining Unaudited Balance Sheet
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets
All Operating Units
Electric Operating Unit
Water Operating Unit
Graphical Three Year Summary
Budget Comparison — January 1 thru August 31, 2022
Construction Summary — January 1 thru August 31, 2022
Financial Metrics

Debt Service Coverage

Statement of Cash and Investments

~J

11

17

20

32

33

36






























o))



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



0¢



1¢



44



€¢



124



q¢



9¢



Le



8¢



6¢



0€



1€



32



€e

Certificate of Calculation
Of Net Revenues for the
Board of Public Utilities
For The Month Ended
August 2022

According to the requirements of the Supplemental Indentures, as defined in the Second Amended and Restated Trust Indenture, dated as of June
1, 2014, effective as of December 8, 2016 and any Supplemental Indentures as defined in the Second Amended and Restated Trust Indenture, the
Board of Public Utilities is required to calculate the Net Revenues of the Utility System for the twelve month period ending with such calendar
quarter.

“Net Revenues” means the Revenues of the Utility System, less Operation and Maintenance Expenses.
Electric Water Combined

12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending
August 31, 2022 August 31, 2022 August 31, 2022

Revenues $ 319,182,359 52,209,018 371,391,377
Operating and Maintenance Expenses (211,726,059) (28,762,043) (240,488,102)
Net Revenues $ 107,456,300 23,446,975 130,903,275
Maximum Annual Debt Service - Total Debt 3 44,880,036 11,909,679 52,206,664
Coverage - Electric/2029 Water/2022 Combined/2024 2.39 1.97 2.51
Maximum Annual Debt Service - Parity $ 44,668,378 8,402,282 47,988,426
Coverage - Electric/2030 Water/2022 Combined/2025 2.41 2.79 2.73

P /@9/42

Lori C. Austin
CFO/CAO




ve

Exhibit 1
REVENUES

Electric Water Combined

12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending

August 31, 2022 August 31, 2022 August 31, 2022
Total Utility Revenues
Residential Sales h) 83,638,630 24,579,563 108,218,193
Commercial Sales 109,948,223 11,452,845 121,401,068
Industrial Sales 48,556,198 5,959,312 54,515,510
Schools 10,150,928 625,961 10,776,889
Other Sales (1) 347,211 615,408 962,619
Wholesale Sales 29,141,222 1,420,207 30,561,429
Payment In Lieu Of Taxes 30,157,641 5,468,238 35,625,879
Interest Income and Other (2) 7,247,520 2,087,484 9,335,004
Bond Cost of Issuance - - -
Deferred Revenue - Fuel/PP* - - -
Less: Construction Fund Earnings (5,214) - (5,214)
Total Revenues h) 319,182,359 52,209,018 371,391,377

*Revenue deferred for Energy Rate Component (ERC) reconciliation adjustment (FAS 71)

“Revenues” mean all income and revenue derived by the BPU from the management, operation and control of the Utility System or any Project or other part

thereof, whether resulting from extensions, enlargements, repairs or betterments to the Utility System or otherwise, and includes all revenues received by the

BPU from the Utility System, including rates and charges imposed by the BPU with respect to the Utility System and from the sale and use of services and

products of such Utility System, and includes all income derived from the investment of monies in any of the Funds established herein (the Indenture of Trust

dated June, 2014) except those monies in the Construction Fund derived from Bond proceeds, but such term shall not include proceeds paid with respect to any

loss incurred by the Utility System covered by an appropriate insurance policy and shall not include extraordinary revenues.

Notes: (1) Other sales includes: highway lighting, public authorities, fire protection and other non-operating income

(2) Interest income and other includes: forfeited discounts, connect/disconnect fees, tower/pole attachment rental, ash disposal, interest on

investments and other miscellaneous non-operating revenues.



Ge

Exhibit 2

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Electric Water Combined
12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending
August 31. 2022 August 31. 2022 August 31, 2022
Operating Expenses* $ 273,404,069 42,519,969 315,924,038
Less: Depreciation And Amortization (31,520,369) (8,289,688) (39,810,057)
Less: Payment In Lieu of Taxes (30,157,641) (5,468,238) (35,625,879)
Operating & Maintenance Expenses $ 211,726,059 28,762,043 240,488,102

*Excludes interest expense on outstanding Revenue Bonds.

“Operation and Maintenance Expenses” means the funds necessary to maintain and operate the Utility System, including, but not limited to, amounts of money reasonably required to be set aside for
such items, the payment of which is not then immediately required, including all money necessary for the payment of the costs of ordinary repairs, renewals and replacements, salaries and wages,
employees’ health, hospitalization, pension and retirement expenses, insurance premiums, legal, engineering, accounting and financial advisory fecs and expenses and the cost of additional consulting
and technical services, taxes (but not including payments in lieu thereof), other governmental charges, fucl costs, the cost of purchased power and transmission service, any current expenses or
obligations required to be paid by the BPU by ordinance of the City or by Law, to the extent properly allocable to the Utility System under generally accepted accounting principles, the fees and
expenses of any fiduciary, including those of the Trustee hereunder, and any other costs which are considered to be Operating and Maintenance Expenses in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Operation and Maintenance Expenses do not include payments in lieu of taxes, depreciation or obsolescence charges or reserves therefor, extraordinary or materially unusual or
infrequently occurring expense items, amortization of intangibles, interest charges and charges for the payment of principal or amortization of bonded or other indebtedness of the City or the BPU,
costs, or charges made therefor for capital additions, replacements, betterments, extensions or improvements to, or retirements from, the sale, abandonment, reclassification, revaluation or other

disposition of any properties of the Utility System, and such property items, including taxes and fuel, which are capitalized by the BPU.



BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES
CASH AND INVESTMENTS

9€

August 31, 2022 August 31, 2022 August 31, 2022
Electric Water Combined
Beginning Cash and Investments As of 01/01/22 $ 58,023,736 23,511,012 81,534,748
Cash Receipts Year to Date 293,585,409 36,323,579 329,908,988
Cash Payments Year to Date (282,288,887) (30,745,357) (313,034,244)
Cash and Investments as of 8/31/22 S 69,320,258 29,089,234 98,409,492
Restrictions of Cash and Investments
Customer Deposit S 6,047,662 1,377,104 7,424,766
Self Insurance Reserve - Public Liability 800,000 200,000 1,000,000
Self Insurance Reserve -Workers' Comp 880,000 220,000 1,100,000
Debt Service Fund 32,809,341 8,471,994 41,281,335
Debt Reduction Fund - 6,290,000 6,290,000
Rate Stabilization Fund 9,156,273 - 9,156,273
Improvement and Emergency Fund 1,350,000 150,000 1,500,000
Construction Fund 2016C 710,807 - 710,807
Construction Fund 2020A 799,096 - 799,096
Ongoing Construction Reserve for 2022 4,653,000 682,485 5,335,485
System Development - 11,295,738 11,295,738
Remaining Operating Reserve Requirement 22,973,313 1,000,000 23,973,313
Economic Development Fund 350,000 150,000 500,000
Total Restrictions S 80,529,492 29,837,321 110,366,813
Unrestricted Cash and Investments S (11,209,234) (748,087) (11,957,321)

* The unrestricted cash balance represents the amount needed to fully fund the reserve funds as established in the BPU Financial Guideline Policy 02-100-007






